ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE COMMUNI TY AND REG ONAL AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 24, 2016
3:31 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator dick Bishop, Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bert Stednman, Vice Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Anna MacKi nnon

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 88

"An Act relating to new defined benefit tiers in the public
enpl oyees’ retirement system and the teachers’ retirement
system providing certain enployees an opportunity to choose
between the defined benefit and defined contribution plans of
the public enployees' retirement system and the teachers’
retirement system and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 88

SHORT TI TLE: TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(S) EGAN

03/ 25/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 15 (S) CRA, FIN

04/ 09/ 15 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
04/ 09/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

04/ 09/ 15 (S) M NUTE( CRA)

03/ 24/ 16 (S) CRA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER
SENATOR DENNI S EGAN

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 88.

JESSE KI EHL, Staff

Senat or Egan

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 88.

WLLI AM B. FORNI A, Consul t ant

Al aska Public Pension Coalition

Denver, Col orado

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conducted a presentation on SB 88 regarding
a Direct Benefit Pension Option for Al aska's public enployees.

CHRI STOPHER BENSHOOF, Teacher

Lat hrop H gh School

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

JEROVE KRI STJANSON, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

JUSTI N HERNANDEZ, Police Oficer

Anchorage Police Departmnent-Minicipality of Anchorage
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

GREG COLLEN, representing hinself
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 88.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31:13 PM

CHAIR CLICK BISHOP called the Senate Community and Regional
Affairs Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present
at the call to order was Senator Egan and Chair Bi shop.

SB 88- TEACHERS & PUB EMPLOYEE RETI REMENT PLANS

3:32: 26 PM
CHAI R Bl SHOP announced t he consi derati on of SB 88.

3:33:39 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2016



SENATOR DENNIS EGAN, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
provi ded a sponsor's statenment on SB 88 as foll ows:

SB 88 lets teachers, troopers, firefighters, and other
public enpl oyees choose one of two state retirenent
systens: an individual defined contribution retirenent
account, or earning a defined benefit pension.
Anal ysis of a previous version of this bill showed it
woul d save the state about $70 million in the first 5
years and any revenue in this day and age is a good
thing; it is cost neutral in the long term it shares
the risk of rising healthcare costs between enpl oyees
and enployers, and it adds nothing, not one red-cent
to the unfunded liabilities of the past. M. Chair, ny
staff and vyour staff have worked hard wth the
Adm nistration to get an up-to-date fiscal analysis
and | know they are working hard on it right now and
we should have it very soon. | talked a |ot about this
bill last year, so I'd like to thank the Al aska Public
Pension Coalition for bringing on an actuary to
present SB 88 to us today.

3:35:40 PM

JESSE KIEHL, Staff, Senator Egan, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, stated that he would address the major changes
that were nade to SB 88. He specified that SB 88 |eaves
conpletely intact the current Defined Contribution (DC) system
and the option would continue for newy hired enployees. He
detailed that SB 88 would also create a new Defined Benefit (DB)
pension tier option.

MR. KIEHL specified that the DB pension tier in SB 88 differed
in very inportant ways frompast DB tiers as foll ows:

* Myjority of enployees would pay 8 percent of their incone
rat her than 6.75 percent.

» Earning retiree health insurance benefits would take |onger
where an individual wuld have to first be Medicare
el i gi bl e.

e Individuals would have to share in the cost of retiree-
heal t hcare cover age.

He set forth that SB 838 was witten so that the new DB pl an does
not cost the State of Alaska, nunicipalities, and school
districts any nore than the DC plan. He noted that Senator Egan
insisted that as a safeguard, no added cost be witten into SB
88. He pointed out that the SB 88 would allow individuals

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2016



working in the DC system a one-shot option to switch to the DB
tier at their cost. He specified that SB 88 does not add any
unfunded liability for an enpl oyee who switches to the DB plan.
He added that the Departnment of Administration was working on a
full-fiscal analysis of SB 88. He summarized that SB 88 would
provide a recruitnent benefit and reduce the high cost of
turnover by allowi ng enployees to choose either a DC or DB
pensi on pl an.

3:41: 18 PM
CHAI R Bl SHOP asked how many states have pension options simlar
to the SB 88 proposal.

MR. KIEHL replied that he did not know He noted that a couple
of states allow an enployee to revisit their pension option, but
Senator Egan insisted that a one-tinme irrevocable decision be
witten into SB 88 in order to predict costs.

CHAI R BI SHOP asked that information be provided as to how many
states went to a DC plan and reverted back to a DB pl an.

MR KIEHL replied that a case study that addressed pension
changes made by a couple of states was submitted to conmittee
menbers.

3:42:57 PM

WLLIAM B. FORNIA, Consultant, Al aska Public Pension Coalition,
Denver, Col orado, noted that Nebraska and West Virginia swtched
froma DC plan back to a DB pl an.

MR FORNI A explained his actuarial history as a pension
consul tant as foll ows:

e Actuary for the Alaska Retirenent Managenent (ARM) Board in
2005 and 2006.

e Consultant for Alaska Public Pension Coalition (APPC) since
2011.

He detailed that his work with APPC had focused on crafting
pensi on |egislation that brought forth savings or no added cost
to the state.

3:48: 24 PM

He specified that the bill's key feature was providi ng enpl oyees
with a choice between a DC or DB plan. He pointed out that SB 88
woul d not cost the state or other public enployers nore noney.
He added that any risk of increased healthcare cost would be

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2016



shifted to the workers where enployees would share in higher
costs.

MR FORNIA pointed out that public enployees hired since
2005/ 2006 do not have a Social Security safety net. He opined
that enployees who do not invest reasonably well or encounter
negati ve-financial markets m ght not have any safety net.

3:52:40 PM

CHAIR BI SHOP remarked that nore DB-plan retirees would stay in
the state. He asserted that retirees that stay in A aska add so
much value to their communities and to the state.

MR FORNIA set forth that DB plans were designed to actually
define a retirenent benefit by providing pensions whereas DC
plans try to build wealth

3:55:44 PM

He explained that benefit Ilevels were conpared between the
|atest DB tier for teachers, Tier 2, and the current DC tier,
Tier 3. He revealed that Tier 2 would have a pension of 58
percent of pay and Tier 3 would only have 33 percent, 25 percent
less than Tier 2. He noted that nunbers between tiers were
simlar for police and firefighters as well. He renarked that
the disparity between the two tiers denonstrated why a DB
alternative was needed. He added that the Tier 3 pension would
not be nuch nore than an individual receiving Social Security.

3:58: 03 PM

He disclosed that he had co-authored a paper with the Nationa
Institute on Retirenent Security (NIRS) in 2008 that was updated
in 2014. He detailed that the paper denponstrated that a DB pl an
woul d provide a higher |evel of benefits than a DC plan. He set
forth that Longevity Ri sk Pooling (LRP) was one factor for the
DB plan's higher benefits level. He detailed that LRP annually
has people of the sane age retiring, whereas an individual does
not know how | ong they are going to |ive and consequently has to
save nore.

CHAI R Bl SHOP asked if there was a risk difference between DB and
DC pl ans.

MR FORNIA replied that the risk for DB and DC plans was
i denti cal

4:02:43 PM

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2016



MR. FORNI A expl ained that additional reasons for a higher return
from a DB plan was due to portfolio diversification and
pr of essi onal managenent.

4:11: 29 PM

He reported that research on economc efficiency had shown DB
plan costs were 46 percent less than a DC plan for the sane
benefit level. He remarked that a m sperception exists where DC
pl ans inherently save noney. He said the only reason DC plans
save noney was due to enployers putting |less noney in, but
enpl oyees receive a severe reduction in benefit |evels.

He remarked that DC plans have gotten a lot better in the |ast
10 years wth lower fees, new asset allocations, and the
i ntroduction of Target Date Funds where workers receive help in
asset allocation that is based on an individual's retirenent
dat e.

He revealed that NIRS did a study on three states that changed
from DB plans to DC plans: Wst Virginia, Mchigan, and Al aska.
He said the conclusions indicated that going from DB to DC did
not help with the unfunded liability at all and the plan costs
actual ly went up.

4:14:26 PM
CHAIR BISHOP asked if the overfunding of 24 percent by
individuals in a DC plan woul d provi de savi ngs.

MR FORNIA replied not quite. He explained that an individua
has to overfund their DC plan in order to receive the sane |evel
of benefits through a DB plan because a person does not know how
long they are going to live. He specified that overfunding by an
individual in a DC plan does not have nmuch to do with the
state's unfunded liability for the |egacy-DB plan. He summarized
that the best way to address the underfunding problem was just
to fund it, to have a responsible funding policy, make the ful
contribution each year, and to adjust the state's assunptions as
necessary over time.

CHAI R BI SHOP opined that DB plans work, but the state has to be
honest with the nultiplier and contribution rate.

MR FORNIA replied that Chair Bishop's point was proven by
California in 1999. He recalled that the markets were boomng in
the 90s and there was a view that the nmarkets would go up
forever. He detailed that California set a high mltiplier
called "3 at 50" where an individual would get 3 percent of pay

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2016



for each year of service at age 50. He said California thought
they were over-funded, but their pension strategy cane back to
bite them He agreed that a state has to be honest with its
mul ti plier and assunptions.

4:18: 39 PM

MR. FORNIA referenced a study from California that refuted the
claim that DC plans were better for teachers than DB plans. He
admtted that DC plans m ght be better for a few teachers that
did not teach for a full career, but 89 percent of California
teachers taught for 10 years or nore and were better off with a
DB pension plan rather than a DC pl an:

e 0-4 years (6 percent)

e 5-9 years (5 percent)

e 10-19 years (14 percent)
e 20-29 years (26 percent)
e 30+ years (49 percent)

4:22:02 PM

He referenced an actuarial study from 2014 that addressed
whet her Al aska's DC plan encouraged workers to quit and nobve
back to the Lower 48. He said the report revealed that the
turnover rate for teachers in their first 8 years was 12 percent
hi gher than expected, police and firefighters was 4 percent
hi gher than expected, and the turnover rate for "other" Public
Enpl oyees' Retirenent System (PERS) workers in the first 5 years
was 15 percent |ess than expected. He summarized that the report
m ght provide evidence that the state was indeed |[|osing
teachers, police, and firefighters nore than expected.

4:25: 00 PM

CHAI R BI SHOP asked if nonetary nunbers had been assigned that
take into account the tinme and noney invested in professiona
devel opnent for workers that quit.

MR. FORNIA answered no. He concurred that training costs were
substantial, especially for public safety, but the actuarial
study was done for a totally different purpose.

CHAI R BI SHOP suggested that the sponsor and the conmittee take
turnover cost into account in order to nove the DB |egislation
forward

MR. FORNIA replied that he agreed. He noted that the actuarial
report was done during a recession when individuals tend to hang

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2016



on to their jobs. He opined that the report was nore evidence
that the turnover rate could be a significant ongoing issue,
especi ally when data was gl eaned during a recession.

4:28:29 PM
MR. FORNI A revealed that Al aska's unfunded liability had grown
by nore than $3 billion since the DC program s inplenentation.

He pointed out that the bill for the DC program was not designed
to solve the unfunded liability. He reiterated that SB 88 had
safeguards to try and nmnage any additional unf unded
liabilities, primarily on the healthcare side. He detailed that
if healthcare costs go up nore than expected, there would be a
greater cost-sharing by enployees and retirees. He specified
that the bill's advance-funding plan should result in no new
unfunded liability if the actuarial assunptions were accurate

He disclosed that the actuarial assunptions in the DC plan were
conservative and could result in a small surplus.

He set forth that the DB plan in SB 88 was designed to:

* Be econom cal
* Keep jobs in Al aska.
e Keep retirees in Al aska.

* Provide a safety net that everyone else has from Social
Security.

e« Be cost neutral.

He stated that the bill's pension benefits would basically be
the sanme as the tiers that were swtched in the 90s. He reveal ed
that retiree health benefits would be stronger than the DC pl an,
but not as strong as the benefits in the 90s. He added that
enpl oyees in either the DC or DB plans would both contribute 8
percent of their incone.

4:32: 02 PM
He summari zed that the DB plan in SB 88 would do the follow ng:

e Provide better benefits for workers.
 Provide better healthcare benefits for workers.

 Wirkers would no |onger have the health-retirenent account
contributions, but they would have a retiree health program
i nst ead.

» Designed so the enployer costs would not increase.

e Depending on the pending fiscal note, would actually save
noney for the state.

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2016



CHAIR BI SHOP stated that he was a DB plan recipient and glad to
have spent 40 years working to get it. He recalled that he read
an article where Congress had passed a provision that allowed
pension plans to wite-down their unfunded debt and the result
woul d be decreased nonthly benefit paynents.

4:34: 23 PM

MR FORNIA replied that Chair Bishop was referring to nulti-
enpl oyer plans that would affect Teansters trucking conpanies
and sone of the airlines. He explained that the provision would
not affect state or |ocal governnents, and no single-enployer
pensions. He specified that the federal government has no
jurisdiction and the issue related to states' rights. He noted
that Social Security was an exanple of Alaska refusing to
participate and that was the reason why the state has its own
pensi on.

4:36:56 PM

CHRI STOPHER BENSHOOF, teacher, Lathrop H gh School, Fairbanks,
Al aska, testified in support of SB 88. He disclosed that he
taught math, statistics, conputer science, engineering, and
robotics at Lathrop Hi gh School in Fairbanks. He noted that he
was recognized as the 2013 Al aska Teacher of the Year, 2015
Nati onal Teacher of Excellence, and a finalist for the 2015
Presidential Award for Excellence in Math and Sci ence Teachi ng.
He asserted that Alaska's DC plan had harned the state's
recruitment and retention efforts for teachers.

4:40: 30 PM

JEROVE KRl STJANSCN, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska,
testified in support of SB 88. He commented that the better the
benefit package, the higher the quality and nunber of job
applicants. He asserted that individuals want the option to
either control their own retirenment funds through a DC plan or
rely on the leadership of trained financial experts for a set
return through a DB pl an.

CHAIR BISHOP stated that he concurred with M. Kristjanson's
comment s.

4:43. 45 PM

JUSTIN HERNANDEZ, Police Oficer, Anchorage Police Departnent-
Municipality of Anchorage, Anchorage, Al aska, testified in
support of SB 88. He remarked that he had |ongevity concerns
under the PERS-Tier 4 plan in regards to financial and nedica
stability as he pursued his |aw enforcenent career. He asserted
that a retention and recruitnment problem existed in the field of

SENATE CRA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2016



|aw enforcenent in Anchorage due to the current retirenent
program

4:46: 17 PM

GRECORY COLLEN, representing hinself, Juneau, Al aska, testified
in support of SB 88. He disclosed that he has been on the PERS-
Tier 4 plan for seven years at the Juneau School District. He
stated that wanted the option to switch to a DB pl an.

CHAIR BISHOP advised that M. Collen continue to save at an
early age for his retirement. He commented that perhaps soneday
M. Collen will have a DB plan option.

He asked that M. Fornia coment on a statistic that he recalled
where 70 percent of retirees in the US. retired at or below the
poverty | evel.

4:50: 39 PM
MR FORNIA replied that 70 percent sounded too high and maybe
did not take Social Security into consideration. He admtted
that the country has a serious retirenent crisis, primarily in
the private sector. He remarked that people have not saved
adequatel y.

SENATOR EGAN asserted that SB 88 had a | ot of support. He stated
that he hoped DB plan | egislation would soneday pass. He thanked
Chair Bishop for co-sponsoring the bill.

4:52:13 PM
CHAI R BI SHOP cl osed public testinony and announced he would hol d
SB 88 in commttee.

4:52: 47 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Bi shop adjourned the Senate Community and Regional Affairs
Standing Conmttee at 4:52 p. m

SENATE CRA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2016



